



Department  
of Health

KATHY HOCHUL  
Governor

JAMES V. McDONALD, M.D., M.P.H.  
Commissioner

MEGAN E. BALDWIN  
Acting Executive Deputy Commissioner

June 29, 2023

James G. Scott, Director  
Division of Program Operations  
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services  
601 E. 12th St., Room 355  
Kansas City, Missouri 64106

RE: SPA #23-0037  
Non-Institutional Services

Dear Mr. Scott:

The State requests approval of the enclosed amendment #23-0037 to the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for non-institutional services to be effective April 1, 2023 (Appendix I). This amendment is being submitted based on enacted legislation. A summary of the plan amendment is provided in Appendix II.

The State of New York reimburses these services through the use of rates that are consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care and are sufficient to enlist enough providers so that care and services are available under the plan at least to the extent that such care and services are available to the general population in the geographic area as required by § 1902(a)(30) of the Social Security Act and 42 CFR § 447.204.

A copy of pertinent sections of enacted legislation is enclosed for your information (Appendix III). Copies of the public notice of this plan amendment, which were given in the New York State Register on March 29, 2023, and clarified on June 28, 2023 are also enclosed for your information (Appendix IV).

If you have any questions regarding this State Plan Amendment submission, please do not hesitate to contact Regina Deyette, Medicaid State Plan Coordinator, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, Office of Health Insurance Programs at (518) 473-3658.

Sincerely,



Amir Bassiri  
Medicaid Director  
Office of Health Insurance Programs

Enclosures

**TRANSMITTAL AND NOTICE OF APPROVAL OF  
STATE PLAN MATERIAL  
FOR: CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES**

1. TRANSMITTAL NUMBER _____	2. STATE _____
3. PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION: TITLE OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT XIX XXI	
4. PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE	
5. FEDERAL STATUTE/REGULATION CITATION <a href="#">Prescribed Drugs, Dentures, Prosthetic Devices; and Eyeglasses</a>	6. FEDERAL BUDGET IMPACT (Amounts in WHOLE dollars) a. FFY _____ \$ _____ b. FFY _____ \$ _____
7. PAGE NUMBER OF THE PLAN SECTION OR ATTACHMENT	8. PAGE NUMBER OF THE SUPERSEDED PLAN SECTION OR ATTACHMENT (If Applicable)


TO: CENTER DIRECTOR  
CENTERS FOR MEDICAID & CHIP SERVICES  
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

9. SUBJECT OF AMENDMENT

10. GOVERNOR'S REVIEW (Check One)

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE REPORTED NO COMMENT  
COMMENTS OF GOVERNOR'S OFFICE ENCLOSED  
NO REPLY RECEIVED WITHIN 45 DAYS OF SUBMITTAL

OTHER, AS SPECIFIED:

11. SIGNATURE OF STATE AGENCY OFFICIAL 	15. RETURN TO
12. TYPED NAME	
13. TITLE	
14. DATE SUBMITTED <a href="#">June 29, 2023</a>	

**FOR CMS USE ONLY**

16. DATE RECEIVED	17. DATE APPROVED
-------------------	-------------------

**PLAN APPROVED - ONE COPY ATTACHED**

18. EFFECTIVE DATE OF APPROVED MATERIAL	19. SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL
20. TYPED NAME OF APPROVING OFFICIAL	21. TITLE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL

22. REMARKS

**Appendix I**  
**2023 Title XIX State Plan**  
**Second Quarter Amendment**  
**Amended SPA Pages**

New York  
2(xiv)(a)

**1905(a)(12) Prescribed Drugs, Dentures, and Prosthetic Devices; and Eyeglasses**

**6d. Other Practitioner Services (Continued)**

**Pharmacists and Pharmacy Interns ~~as Immunizers~~**

1. Reimbursement will be provided to pharmacies for Medicaid covered services when provided, referred, ordered, and/or ~~vaccines and anaphylaxis agents~~ administered by ~~certified~~ pharmacists and ~~effective on or after July 1, 2021, certified~~ pharmacy interns within the scope of their practice.
2. Service setting.  
Services will be provided by a certified pharmacist or a certified pharmacy intern when the service requires certification, under the supervision of a ~~certified~~ pharmacist in a pharmacy or in other locations where services~~mass immunization may~~ will take place, such as retail stores/outlets, assisted living centers, and health fairs.
3. Provider qualifications.  
Pharmacists must be currently licensed, registered and certified by the NYS Education Department and any other certifying entity as required by State requirements, to provide certain Medicaid covered services~~to administer immunizations~~. Pharmacy interns must currently possess an active limited permit issued by the NYS Education Department and any other certification as required by State requirements to provide certain Medicaid covered services~~to administer immunizations, both of which must be issued by the NYS Education Department~~.

New York  
2(xiv)(a)

**1905(a)(12) Prescribed Drugs, Dentures, and Prosthetic Devices; and Eyeglasses**

**6d. Other Practitioner Services (Continued)**

**Pharmacists and Pharmacy Interns ~~as Immunizers~~**

1. Reimbursement will be provided to pharmacies for Medicaid covered services when provided, referred, ordered, and/or ~~vaccines and anaphylaxis agents~~ administered by ~~certified~~ pharmacists and ~~effective on or after July 1, 2021, certified~~ pharmacy interns within the scope of their practice.
2. Service setting.  
Services will be provided by a certified pharmacist or a certified pharmacy intern when the service requires certification, under the supervision of a ~~certified~~ pharmacist in a pharmacy or in other locations where services~~mass immunization may~~ will take place, such as retail stores/outlets, assisted living centers, and health fairs.
3. Provider qualifications.  
Pharmacists must be currently licensed, registered and certified by the NYS Education Department and any other certifying entity as required by State requirements, to provide certain Medicaid covered services~~to administer immunizations~~. Pharmacy interns must currently possess an active limited permit issued by the NYS Education Department and ~~any other~~ certification as required by State requirements to provide certain Medicaid covered services~~to administer immunizations, both of which must be issued by the NYS Education Department~~.

**Appendix II**  
**2023 Title XIX State Plan**  
**Second Quarter Amendment**  
**Summary**

**SUMMARY**  
**SPA #23-0037**

This State Plan Amendment proposes to allow pharmacists and pharmacy interns to provide Medicaid covered services to the limits of their scope of practice.

**Appendix III**  
**2023 Title XIX State Plan**  
**Second Quarter Amendment**  
**Authorizing Provisions**



SPA 23-0037

**SSA Section 1902(a)(54)**

(54) in the case of a State plan that provides medical assistance for covered outpatient drugs (as defined in section 1927(k)), comply with the applicable requirements of section 1927;

**42 CFR Section 447**

Subpart A—Payments: General Provisions

§ 447.1 Purpose.

This subpart prescribes State plan requirements, FFP limitations and procedures concerning payments made by State Medicaid agencies for Medicaid services

**NYS Education Law Article 137 Section 6801**

1. The practice of the profession of pharmacy is defined as the administering, preparing, compounding, preserving, or the dispensing of drugs, medicines and therapeutic devices on the basis of prescriptions or other legal authority, and collaborative drug therapy management in accordance with the provisions of section sixty-eight hundred one-a of this article.
2. A licensed pharmacist may execute a non-patient specific regimen prescribed or ordered by a physician licensed in this state or nurse practitioner certified in this state, pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated by the commissioner. When a licensed pharmacist administers an immunizing agent, he or she shall:
  - a. report such administration by electronic transmission or facsimile to the patient's attending primary health care practitioner or practitioners, if any, and, to the extent practicable, make himself or herself available to discuss the outcome of such immunization, including any adverse reactions, with the attending primary health care practitioner, and to the statewide immunization registry or the citywide immunization registry, as established pursuant to and to the extent permitted by section twenty-one hundred sixty-eight of the public health law; and
  - b. provide information to the patient or, where applicable, the person legally responsible for the patient, on the importance of having a primary health care practitioner, developed by the commissioner of health; and

- c. report such administration, absent of any individually identifiable health information, to the department of health in a manner required by the commissioner of health; and
  - d. prior to administering the immunization, inform the patient or, where applicable, the person legally responsible for the patient, of the total cost of the immunization or immunizations, subtracting any health insurance subsidization, if applicable. In the case the immunization is not covered, the pharmacist must inform the patient or, where applicable, the person legally responsible for the patient, of the possibility that the immunization may be covered when administered by a primary care physician or practitioner; and
  - e. administer the immunization or immunizations according to the most current recommendations by the advisory committee for immunization practices (ACIP), provided however, that a pharmacist may administer any immunization authorized under this section when specified by a patient specific order.
3. No pharmacist shall administer immunizing agents without receiving training satisfactory to the commissioner and the commissioner of health which shall include, but not be limited to, techniques for screening individuals and obtaining informed consent; techniques of administration; indications, precautions and contraindications in the use of agent or agents; record keeping of immunization and information; and handling emergencies, including anaphylaxis and needlesticks.
4. When administering an immunization in a pharmacy, the licensed pharmacist shall provide an area for the immunization that provides for a patient's privacy. The privacy area should include:
- a. a clearly visible posting of the most current "Recommended Adult Immunization Schedule" published by the advisory committee for immunization practices (ACIP); and
  - b. education materials on influenza vaccinations for children as determined by the commissioner and the commissioner of health.
5. A licensed pharmacist may execute a non-patient specific order, for dispensing up to a seven day starter pack of HIV post-exposure prophylaxis medications for the purpose of preventing human immunodeficiency virus infection, by a physician licensed in this state or nurse practitioner certified in this state, pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated by the commissioner in consultation with the commissioner of health following a potential human immunodeficiency virus exposure.
6. A licensed pharmacist may execute a non-patient-specific regimen of insulin and related supplies to an individual

- who has a valid prescription for insulin and related supplies which has since expired within the last twelve months. The valid prescription must have been prescribed or ordered by a physician licensed in this state or nurse practitioner certified in this state. Execution of a non-patient-specific regimen shall be on an emergency basis provided the pharmacist:
- a. first attempts to obtain an authorization from the prescriber of the patient-specific prescription and cannot obtain the authorization, and the prescriber does not object to dispensing to the patient under the non-patient-specific regimen;
  - b. provides a refill of the patient-specific prescription and the quantity of that refill is in conformity with the directions for use under the patient-specific prescription, but limited to an amount not to exceed a thirty-day emergency supply; and
  - c. notifies, within seventy-two hours of dispensing the refill or refills, the prescriber of the patient-specific prescription whose authorization could not be obtained, that an emergency prescription of insulin has been dispensed.
7. \*A licensed pharmacist is a qualified health care professional under section five hundred seventy-one of the public health law for the purposes of directing a limited service laboratory and ordering and administering COVID-19 and influenza tests authorized by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), subject to certificate of waiver requirements established pursuant to the federal clinical laboratory improvement act of nineteen hundred eighty-eight.  
\* NB Repealed April 9, 2024
8. \*A licensed pharmacist within their lawful scope of practice may administer injectable medications into the deltoid muscle, pursuant to section six thousand eight hundred two of this article, for the treatment of mental health and substance use disorder, as prescribed or ordered by a licensed prescriber, acting within their scope of practice in this state and in accordance with regulations, including but not limited to regulations promulgated by the commissioner in consultation with any other state agencies, as necessary.  
\* NB Effective December 28, 2023

**NYS Education Law Article 137 Section 6802**

1. "Pharmacy" means any place in which drugs, prescriptions or poisons are possessed for the purpose of compounding, preserving, dispensing or retailing, or in which drugs,

- prescriptions or poisons are compounded, preserved, dispensed or retailed, or in which such drugs, prescriptions or poisons are by advertising or otherwise offered for sale at retail.
3. "Formulary" means the latest edition of the official national formulary, and its supplement.
  4. "Pharmacopeia", when not otherwise limited, means the latest edition of the official United States pharmacopeia, and its supplement.
  5. "Homeopathic pharmacopeia" means the official homeopathic pharmacopeia of the United States, and its supplement.
  6. "Official compendium" means the official United States pharmacopeia, official homeopathic pharmacopeia of the United States, official national formulary, or their supplements.
  7. "Drugs" means:
    - a. Articles recognized in the official United States pharmacopeia, official homeopathic pharmacopeia of the United States, or official national formulary.
    - b. Articles intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment or prevention of disease in man or animals.
    - c. Articles (other than food) intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or animals.
    - d. Articles intended for use as a component of any article specified in paragraphs a, b, or c; but does not include devices or their components, parts or accessories.
  8. "Cosmetics" means:
    - a. Articles intended to be rubbed, poured, sprinkled or sprayed on, introduced into or otherwise applied to the human body for cleansing, beautifying, promoting attractiveness, or altering the appearance.
    - b. Articles intended for use as a component of any such articles; except that the term shall not include soap.
  9. "Poison", where not otherwise limited, means any drug, chemical or preparation likely to be destructive to adult human life in quantity of sixty grains or less.
  10. "Label" means a display of written, printed or pictorial matter upon the immediate container of any drug, device or cosmetic. Any requirement made by or under authority of this article, that any word, statement, or other information appear on the label shall not be considered to be complied with unless such word, statement or other information also appears on the outside container or wrapper, if there be any, of the retail package of such drug, device or cosmetic or is easily legible through the outside container or wrapper.
  11. "Immediate container" does not include package liners.

12. "Labeling" means all labels and other written, printed or pictorial matter:
  - a. Upon any drug, device or cosmetic or any of its containers or wrappers, or
  - b. Accompanying such drug, device or cosmetic.
13. "Misbranding". If a drug, device or cosmetic is alleged to be misbranded because the labeling is misleading, or if an advertisement is alleged to be false because it is misleading then in determining whether the labeling or advertisement is misleading there shall be taken into account (among other things) not only representations made or suggested by statement, word, design, device, sound or any combination thereof, but also the extent to which the labeling fails to reveal facts material in the light of such representations or material with respect to consequences which may result from the use of the drug, device, or cosmetic to which the labeling or advertising relates under the conditions of use prescribed in the labeling or advertising thereof or under such conditions of use as are customary or usual. No drug, device or cosmetic which is subject to, and complies with regulations promulgated under the provisions of the federal food, drug, and cosmetic act, relating to adulteration and misbranding shall be deemed to be adulterated or misbranded in violation of the provisions of this article because of its failure to comply with the board's regulations, or the rules of the state board of pharmacy, insofar as the regulations are in conflict with regulations relating to adulteration and misbranding under the federal food, drug and cosmetic act.
14. "Antiseptic". The representation of a drug, device or cosmetic in its labeling, as an antiseptic, shall be considered to be a representation that it is a germicide, except in the case of a drug purporting to be, or represented as, an antiseptic for inhibitory use as a wet dressing, ointment, dusting powder, or such other use as involves prolonged contact with the body.
15. "New drug" means:
  - a. Any drug not generally recognized, among experts qualified by scientific training and experience to evaluate the safety and effectiveness of drugs, as safe and effective for use under the conditions prescribed, recommended or suggested by the drug's labeling, except that such a drug not so recognized shall not be deemed to be a "new drug" if at any time prior to September first, nineteen hundred thirty-nine it was subject to the former federal food and drug act of June thirtieth, nineteen hundred six, as amended, and if at such time its labeling contained the same representations concerning the conditions of its use;
  - b. Any drug, the composition of which is such that the drug, as a result of investigations to determine its

safety and effectiveness for use under such conditions, has become recognized, but which has not otherwise than in such investigations been used to a material extent or for a material time under such conditions.

16. "Device" means instruments, apparatus, and contrivances, including their components, parts and accessories, intended: a. For use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease in man or animals; or b. To affect the structure or any function of the body of man or animals.
17. The term "Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act" means the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act of the United States of America, approved June twenty-fifth, nineteen hundred thirty-eight, officially cited as public document number seven hundred seventeen-seventy-fifth congress (chapter six hundred seventy-five--third session), and all its amendments now or hereafter enacted.
18. "Wholesaler" means a person who bottles, packs or purchases drugs, devices or cosmetics for the purpose of selling or reselling to pharmacies or to other channels as provided in this article.
19. "Advertisement" means all representations disseminated in any manner or by any means, other than by labeling, for the purpose of inducing, or which are likely to induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of drugs, devices or cosmetics.
20. "Controlled substance" means any drug defined as a controlled substance by article thirty-three of the public health law.
21. "Manufacturer" means a person who compounds, mixes, prepares, produces, and bottles or packs drugs, cosmetics or devices for the purpose of distributing or selling to pharmacies or to other channels of distribution.
22. \*"Administer", for the purpose of section sixty-eight hundred one of this article, means:
  - a. the direct application of an immunizing agent to adults, whether by injection, ingestion, inhalation or any other means, pursuant to a patient specific order or non-patient specific regimen prescribed or ordered by a physician or certified nurse practitioner, for: immunizations to prevent influenza, pneumococcal, acute herpes zoster, hepatitis A, hepatitis B, human papillomavirus, measles, mumps, rubella, varicella, COVID-19, meningococcal, tetanus, diphtheria or pertussis disease and medications required for emergency treatment of anaphylaxis; and other immunizations recommended by the advisory committee on immunization practices of the centers for disease control and prevention for patients eighteen years of age or older if the commissioner of health in consultation with the commissioner determines that an

immunization: (i)(A) may be safely administered by a licensed pharmacist within their lawful scope of practice; and (B) is needed to prevent the transmission of a reportable communicable disease that is prevalent in New York state; or (ii) is a recommended immunization for such patients who: (A) meet age requirements, (B) lack documentation of such immunization, (C) lack evidence of past infection, or (D) have an additional risk factor or another indication as recommended by the advisory committee on immunization practices of the centers for disease control and prevention. If the commissioner of health determines that there is an outbreak of disease, or that there is the imminent threat of an outbreak of disease, then the commissioner of health may issue a non-patient specific regimen applicable statewide.

- b. the direct application of an immunizing agent to children between the ages of two and eighteen years of age, whether by injection, ingestion, inhalation or any other means, pursuant to a patient specific order or non-patient specific regimen prescribed or ordered by a physician or certified nurse practitioner, for immunization to prevent influenza and medications required for emergency treatment of anaphylaxis resulting from such immunization. If the commissioner of health determines that there is an outbreak of influenza, or that there is the imminent threat of an outbreak of influenza, then the commissioner of health may issue a non-patient specific regimen applicable statewide.

\* NB Effective until December 28, 2023

22. \* "Administer", for the purpose of section sixty-eight hundred one of this article, means:

- a.
  1. the direct application of an immunizing agent to adults, whether by injection, ingestion, inhalation or any other means, pursuant to a patient specific order or non-patient specific regimen prescribed or ordered by a physician or certified nurse practitioner, for: immunizations to prevent influenza, pneumococcal, acute herpes zoster, hepatitis A, hepatitis B, human papillomavirus, measles, mumps, rubella, varicella, COVID-19, meningococcal, tetanus, diphtheria or pertussis disease and medications required for emergency treatment of anaphylaxis; and other immunizations recommended by the advisory committee on immunization practices of the centers for disease control and prevention

for patients eighteen years of age or older if the commissioner of health in consultation with the commissioner determines that an immunization: (i)(A) may be safely administered by a licensed pharmacist within their lawful scope of practice; and (B) is needed to prevent the transmission of a reportable communicable disease that is prevalent in New York state; or (ii) is a recommended immunization for such patients who: (A) meet age requirements, (B) lack documentation of such immunization, (C) lack evidence of past infection, or (D) have an additional risk factor or another indication as recommended by the advisory committee on immunization practices of the centers for disease control and prevention. If the commissioner of health determines that there is an outbreak of disease, or that there is the imminent threat of an outbreak of disease, then the commissioner of health may issue a non-patient specific regimen applicable statewide.

2. the direct application of an immunizing agent to children between the ages of two and eighteen years of age, whether by injection, ingestion, inhalation or any other means, pursuant to a patient specific order or non-patient specific regimen prescribed or ordered by a physician or certified nurse practitioner, for immunization to prevent influenza and medications required for emergency treatment of anaphylaxis resulting from such immunization. If the commissioner of health determines that there is an outbreak of influenza, or that there is the imminent threat of an outbreak of influenza, then the commissioner of health may issue a non-patient specific regimen applicable statewide.

b. The injection of medications into the deltoid muscle for the treatment of mental health and substance use disorder, as prescribed or ordered by a licensed prescriber, acting within the scope of their practice in this state and in accordance with regulations promulgated by the commissioner and the department of health in consultation with any other state agencies as necessary, but not be limited to, providing that:

1. Such administration is conducted pursuant to a valid prescription or order that authorizes a pharmacist to administer medications for the treatment of mental health and substance use disorder and the pharmacist notifies the licensed prescriber that the administration is complete. Administration in a pharmacy may not commence until after the patient has received the initial



- injection and is considered eligible for maintenance treatment by the licensed prescriber.
2. Such prescription may be subject to reassessment at appropriate intervals, as determined by the licensed prescriber.
  3. Such activity is conducted in accordance with regulations, promulgated or adopted by the commissioner and the department of health, in consultation with any other state agencies, as necessary, which shall include requirements for the following:
    - i. Training accredited by the accreditation council for pharmacy education, that may include educational experiences obtained through pharmacy school curricula, or a similar health authority or professional body appropriate for the medications being administered and their respective patient populations. Such training must be satisfactory to the commissioner and the department of health, in consultation with the board of pharmacy and any other state agencies, as necessary, which shall include, but not be limited to learning modules on techniques for administration by injections, indications, precautions, and contraindications in the use of agent or agents; record keeping and information; and handling emergencies, including anaphylaxis, needle-sticks and cardiopulmonary resuscitation.
    - ii. Maintaining continued competency regarding the populations served and medications administered.
    - iii. Pre-administration patient consent and education regarding common side effects, drug interactions, injection site reactions and other information routinely provided to patients upon dispensing. If a patient is unable to provide consent, the pharmacist must obtain consent from a person legally responsible when the recipient is incapable of consenting.
    - iv. When administering an injection in a pharmacy, the pharmacist shall provide an area for the injection that provides for the patient's privacy.
    - v. Record keeping and reporting of such administration by electronic transmission or facsimile to the patient's licensed prescriber, and, to the extent practicable, make himself or herself available to

discuss the outcome of such injection, including any adverse reactions, with the licensed prescriber acting within their scope of practice.

\* NB Effective December 28, 2023.

23. "Electronic prescription" means a prescription created, recorded, or stored by electronic means; issued with an electronic signature; and transmitted by electronic means, in accordance with regulations of the commissioner and applicable regulations of the commissioner of health and federal regulations; provided, however, that an original hard copy prescription that is created electronically or otherwise may be transmitted from the prescriber to the pharmacist by facsimile and must be manually signed. "Electronic" means of or relating to technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities. "Electronic signature" means an electronic sound, symbol, or process, attached to or logically associated with an electronic prescription and executed or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the prescription, in accordance with regulations of the commissioner and applicable regulations of the commissioner of health and federal regulations.
24. "Compounding" means the combining, admixing, mixing, diluting, pooling, reconstituting, or otherwise altering of a drug or bulk drug substance to create a drug with respect to an outsourcing facility under section 503B of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and further defined in this section. 25. "Outsourcing facility" means a facility that: (a) is engaged in the compounding of sterile drugs; (b) is currently registered as an outsourcing facility with the Secretary of Health and Human Services; and (c) complies with all applicable requirements of federal and state law, including the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.
25. "Sterile drug" means a drug that is intended for parenteral administration, an ophthalmic or oral inhalation drug in aqueous format, or a drug that is required to be sterile under federal or state law.
26. "Biological product" means a biological product as defined in subsection (i) of section 351 of the Public Health Service Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 262(i).
27. "Interchangeable biological product" means a biological product licensed by the United States Food and Drug Administration pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 262(k)(4) as set forth in the latest edition or supplement of the United States Food and Drug Administration Lists of Licensed Biological Products with Reference Product

Exclusivity and Biosimilarity or Interchangeability Evaluations, sometimes referred to as the "Purple Book," or a biological product determined by the United States Food and Drug Administration to be therapeutically equivalent as set forth in the latest edition or supplement of the United States Food and Drug Administration Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations, sometimes referred to as the "Orange Book."

**NYS Education Law Article 137 Section 6806**

1. The department may issue a limited permit for employment as a "pharmacy intern" to:
  - a. A student enrolled in the last two years of a registered program in pharmacy, or
  - b. A graduate of a program in pharmacy which meets standards established by the commissioner's regulations who is engaged in meeting the experience requirements or whose application for initial licensure is pending with the department.
2. A pharmacy intern may, as determined by the commissioner's regulations, practice as a pharmacist under the immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist.
3. A limited permit issued to a pharmacy intern shall have an expiration date of five years from the date of issue. Limited permits may be renewed once for a period not to exceed two years.
4. Fees. The fee for each limited permit issued to a pharmacy intern shall be seventy dollars.

**Appendix IV**  
**2023 Title XIX State Plan**  
**Second Quarter Amendment**  
**Public Notice**

# MISCELLANEOUS NOTICES/HEARINGS

## Notice of Abandoned Property Received by the State Comptroller

Pursuant to provisions of the Abandoned Property Law and related laws, the Office of the State Comptroller receives unclaimed monies and other property deemed abandoned. A list of the names and last known addresses of the entitled owners of this abandoned property is maintained by the office in accordance with Section 1401 of the Abandoned Property Law. Interested parties may inquire if they appear on the Abandoned Property Listing by contacting the Office of Unclaimed Funds, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., at:

1-800-221-9311  
or visit our web site at:  
[www.osc.state.ny.us](http://www.osc.state.ny.us)

Claims for abandoned property must be filed with the New York State Comptroller's Office of Unclaimed Funds as provided in Section 1406 of the Abandoned Property Law. For further information contact: Office of the State Comptroller, Office of Unclaimed Funds, 110 State St., Albany, NY 12236.

## PUBLIC NOTICE Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Department of Health hereby gives public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for institutional, non-institutional and long-term care services to comply with statutory provisions. The following changes are proposed:

### All Services

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, the Department of Health will adjust rates statewide to reflect a 2.5% percent Cost of Living Adjustment for the following Office of Mental Health (OMH), Office of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS), and Office for People With Developmental Disabilities (OPWDD) State Plan Services: OMH Outpatient Services, OMH Clinic Services, OMH Rehabilitative Services, Children Family Treatment Support Services, Health Home Plus, Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facilities for Children and Youth, OASAS Outpatient Addiction Services, OASAS Freestanding (non-hospital) Inpatient Rehabilitation Services, OASAS Freestanding Inpatient Detox Services, OASAS Addiction Treatment Centers, OASAS Part 820 Residential Services, OASAS Residential Rehabilitation Services for Youth, Intermediate Care Facility (ICF/IDD), Day Treatment, Article 16 Clinic Services, Specialty Hospital, Health Home Services Provided by Care Coordination Organizations, Independent Practitioner Services for Individual with Developmental Disabilities (IPSIDD), and OPWDD Crisis Services.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$53.6 million.

### Non-Institutional Services

Effective on and after April 1, 2023, the New York State Department of Health proposes to amend the State Plan to allow for reimbursement of Medicaid covered services provided by pharmacists within their lawful scope of practice, including pharmacist prescribing oral contraceptives and smoking cessation products.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$1.6 million. In the out years the net aggregate in gross Medicaid expenditure for smoking cessation products will be a savings.

Effective on or after April 1, 2024, this proposal would eliminate Prescriber Prevals which applies to the Medicaid fee-for-service pharmacy program. Doing so would reduce inappropriate prescribing, remove barriers that limit the State's ability to manage pharmacy programs, and minimize the inappropriate influence of pharmaceutical manufacturers in the prior authorization process.

The estimated net aggregate decrease in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2024-2025 is (\$99 million).

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, the Department will remove copayments for over the counter (OTC) products and limit OTC products to those that are medically necessary. Clinically critical products such as aspirin and vitamins and minerals used for deficiencies will continue to be covered, as will less expensive OTC products that are in Preferred Drug Program (PDP) drug classes.

The estimated net aggregate decrease in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is (\$17.4 million).

Effective on and after April 1, 2023, the New York State Department of Health proposes to amend the State Plan to modify the specific drug class language for excluded drugs, to alternatively use current publicly available Department resources for coverage transparency.

There is no estimated change to annual gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, this proposal continues the supplemental upper payment limit payments made to general hospitals, other than major public general hospitals under non-institutional services of \$339 million annually.

There is no estimated change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

For state fiscal year beginning April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024, this proposal continues hospital outpatient payment adjustments that increase the operating cost components of rates of payment for hospital outpatient and emergency departments on and after April 1, 2011, for public general hospitals other than those operated by the State of New York or the State University of New York, which are located in a city with a population of over one million. The amount to be paid will be up to \$287 million annually based on criteria and methodology set by the Commissioner of Health, which the Commissioner may periodically set through a memorandum of understanding with the New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation. Such adjustments shall be paid by means of one or more estimated payments. Payments may be added to rates of payment or made as aggregate payments.

There is no estimated change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

For state fiscal year beginning April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024, this proposal continues payment of up to \$5.4 million in additional annual Medicaid payments to county operated free-standing clinics, not including facilities operated by the New York City Health

and Hospitals Corporation, for services provided by such DTC and those provided by a county operated freestanding mental health or substance abuse DTC. Distributions shall be based on each eligible facility's proportionate share of the sum of all DTC and clinic visits for all eligible facilities receiving payments for the base year two years prior to the rate year. The proportionate share payments may be added to rates of payment or made as aggregate payments to eligible facilities.

There is no estimated change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

Effective April 1, 2023, and each state fiscal year thereafter, this amendment proposes to revise the calculation to extract data later on in the calendar year for the applicable dates of service. The current authority to make supplemental payments for services provided by physicians, nurse practitioners and physician assistants will continue.

There is no estimated change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, the Department of Health will adjust rates for Assisted Living Program (ALP) providers by a 5% across the board increase to the most recently active Operating rate in effect on March 31, 2023, for each provider.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$18 million.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, the Department of Health will adjust rates for Adult Day Health Care providers by a 5% across the board increase to the most recently active Operating rate in effect on March 31, 2023, for each provider.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$838,000.

Effective on and after April 1, 2023, this notice provides for a temporary rate adjustment with an aggregate payment totaling no less than \$7.5 million annually for Critical Access Hospitals (CAHs), for the periods April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025. Funding will be allocated to financially distressed hospitals with plans to reconfigure operations by improving financial management, improving quality of care and service delivery and/or improving operational efficiency and cost effectiveness.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$7.5 million and contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2024-2025 is \$7.5 million.

Effective on and after April 1, 2023, this notice provides for a temporary rate adjustment with an aggregate payment amount totaling no less than \$10 million annually, for Essential Community Providers (ECPs) for the periods April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025. Funding will be allocated to financially distressed hospitals with plans to reconfigure operations by improving financial management, improving quality of care and service delivery and/or improving operational efficiency and cost effectiveness.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$10 million and contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2024-2025 \$10 million.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, this notice proposes to establish Medical Assistance coverage and rates of payment for rehabilitative services for individuals residing in OMH-licensed residential settings who have been diagnosed with an eating disorder, in order to provide appropriate care and treatment to adults and children with eating disorders.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$4 million.

Effective on or after May 1, 2023, the NYS Medicaid Program proposes to reimburse enrolled ambulance services for administration of vaccinations performed by Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT) / Paramedics employed by the ambulance service. This proposal is

intended to ensure ongoing access to vaccinations after the end of the federal COVID-19 Public Health Emergency.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-24 is \$35,000.

Effective March 11, 2021 and ending on the last day of the first calendar quarter that begins one year after the last day of the emergency period described in section 1135(g)(1)(B) of the Social Security Act, the Medicaid program assures coverage of COVID-19 vaccines and administration of the vaccines, COVID-19 treatment, including specialized equipment and therapies (including preventive therapies), and COVID-19 testing consistent with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recommendations.

There is no estimated change to annual gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

Effective December 1, 2021 and ending on the last day of the first calendar quarter that begins one year after the last day of the emergency period described in section 1135(g)(1)(B) of the Social Security Act, the Medicaid program proposes to reimburse providers for medically necessary COVID-19 vaccine counseling for children under 21 at a fee of \$25.00 per session.

There is no estimated change to annual gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, the Department of Health will adjust rates statewide to reflect up to a twenty-five percent rate increase for all services provided by School-based Mental Health Outpatient Treatment and Rehabilitative Service (SBMH MHOTRS) programs licensed by the Office of Mental Health.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$9.2 million.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, Medicaid will increase the APG Base Rates by ten percent for School Based Health Centers (SBHC).

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$2.8 million.

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, a Supplemental Payment Program will be established to reimburse eligible Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) and Diagnostic and Treatment Centers (DTCs) for potential loss of funding associated with the 340B Drug Pricing Program due to State policy change. Additionally, this Amendment clarifies the reimbursement methodology for the Supplemental Payment Wrap Program for FQHCs and RHCs which provides supplemental payments that are equal to 100% of the difference between the facility's reasonable cost per visit rate and the amount per visit reimbursed by the Medicaid managed care health plan.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$250 million.

#### Institutional Services

Effective on or after April 1, 2023, this proposal continues the supplemental upper payment limit payments made to general hospitals, other than major public general hospitals under institutional services of \$339 million annually.

There is no estimated change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of this proposed amendment.

For state fiscal year beginning April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024, this proposal continues adjustments for hospital inpatient services provided on and after April 1, 2012, to public general hospitals, other than those operated by the State of New York or the State University of New York, located in a city with a population of over one million and receiving reimbursement of up to \$1.08 billion annually based on criteria and methodology set by the Commissioner of Health, which the Commissioner may periodically set through a memorandum of understanding with the New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation. Such adjustments will be paid by means of one or more estimated payments. Payments to eligible public general hospitals may be added to rates of payment or made as aggregate payments.

Kings County, Fulton Center  
114 Willoughby Street  
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Bronx County, Tremont Center  
1916 Monterey Avenue  
Bronx, New York 10457

Richmond County, Richmond Center  
95 Central Avenue, St. George  
Staten Island, New York 10301

*For further information and to review and comment, please contact:*  
Department of Health, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, 99  
Washington Ave., One Commerce Plaza, Suite 1432, Albany, NY  
12210, spa\_inquiries@health.ny.gov

## PUBLIC NOTICE

Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Department of Health hereby gives public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for non-institutional services to comply with PHL 2999-D and SSL § 367-u. The following changes are proposed:

### Non-Institutional Services

Effective on or after July 1, 2023, the State proposes to establish a fee to allow outpatient hospital departments to bill when there is no on-site presence at the clinic. The State will reimburse outpatient hospital departments for services furnished via telehealth when neither the provider nor the Medicaid member is on-site. This fee will replace billing of the professional component for these services.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the 2023-2024 budget is \$0.16 million.

The public is invited to review and comment on this proposed State Plan Amendment, a copy of which will be available for public review on the Department's website at [http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state\\_plans/status](http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state_plans/status). Individuals without Internet access may view the State Plan Amendments at any local (county) social services district.

For the New York City district, copies will be available at the following places:

New York County  
250 Church Street  
New York, New York 10018

Queens County, Queens Center  
3220 Northern Boulevard  
Long Island City, New York 11101

Kings County, Fulton Center  
114 Willoughby Street  
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Bronx County, Tremont Center  
1916 Monterey Avenue  
Bronx, New York 10457

Richmond County, Richmond Center  
95 Central Avenue, St. George  
Staten Island, New York 10301

*For further information and to review and comment, please contact:*  
Department of Health, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, 99  
Washington Ave., One Commerce Plaza, Suite 1432, Albany, NY  
12210, spa\_inquiries@health.ny.gov

## PUBLIC NOTICE

Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Department of Health hereby gives public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for institutional services to comply with Parts DD and E of Chapter 57 of the Laws of 2023. The following changes are proposed:

### Non-Institutional Services

Effective for dates of service on or after July 1, 2023, the Department of Health will adjust outpatient rates for hospital providers for services under Article 28 of the Public Health Law, by an additional six and one-half percent (6.5%) across the board increase to the operating portion of the rates.

The estimated net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative contained in the budget for state fiscal year 2023-2024 is \$23.8 million.

### Institutional Services

Effective for dates of service on or after July 1, 2023, the Department of Health will increase fees paid to reimburse Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Program (CPEP) extended observation bed (EOB) services. This State Plan Amendment is necessary to adequately reimburse CPEP EOB programs for providing these services and better meet the community's mental health needs.

The estimated annual net aggregate increase in gross Medicaid expenditures attributable to this initiative \$6,000.

The public is invited to review and comment on this proposed State Plan Amendment, a copy of which will be available for public review on the Department's website at [http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state\\_plans/status](http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state_plans/status). Individuals without Internet access may view the State Plan Amendments at any local (county) social services district.

For the New York City district, copies will be available at the following places:

New York County  
250 Church Street  
New York, New York 10018

Queens County, Queens Center  
3220 Northern Boulevard  
Long Island City, New York 11101

Kings County, Fulton Center  
114 Willoughby Street  
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Bronx County, Tremont Center  
1916 Monterey Avenue  
Bronx, New York 10457

Richmond County, Richmond Center  
95 Central Avenue, St. George  
Staten Island, New York 10301

*For further information and to review and comment, please contact:*  
Department of Health, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, 99  
Washington Ave., One Commerce Plaza, Suite 1432, Albany, NY  
12210, spa\_inquiries@health.ny.gov

## PUBLIC NOTICE

Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Department of Health hereby gives public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for non-institutional services to comply with NYS Education Law Article 137 Sections 6801, 6801-A, 6802 and 6806. The following changes are proposed:

**Non-Institutional Services**

The following is a clarification to the March 29, 2023, noticed provision, to allow for reimbursement of Medicaid covered services provided by pharmacists and pharmacy interns within their lawful scope of practice. With clarification, based on the enacted budget, the fiscal impact for this proposal has been revised to zero.

The public is invited to review and comment on this proposed State Plan Amendment, a copy of which will be available for public review on the Department’s website at [http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state\\_plans/status](http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state_plans/status). Individuals without Internet access may view the State Plan Amendments at any local (county) social services district.

For the New York City district, copies will be available at the following places:

New York County  
250 Church Street  
New York, New York 10018

Queens County, Queens Center  
3220 Northern Boulevard  
Long Island City, New York 11101

Kings County, Fulton Center  
114 Willoughby Street  
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Bronx County, Tremont Center  
1916 Monterey Avenue  
Bronx, New York 10457

Richmond County, Richmond Center  
95 Central Avenue, St. George  
Staten Island, New York 10301

*For further information and to review and comment, please contact:* Department of Health, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, 99 Washington Ave., One Commerce Plaza, Suite 1432, Albany, NY 12210, [spa\\_inquiries@health.ny.gov](mailto:spa_inquiries@health.ny.gov)

**PUBLIC NOTICE**  
Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Office of Mental Health and the Department of Health hereby give public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for institutional services as authorized by § 2826 of the New York Public Health Law. The following changes are proposed:

**Institutional Services**

Effective on or after July 1, 2023, this proposal relates to temporary rate adjustments to Article 28 Hospitals that are undergoing a closure, merger, consolidation, acquisition or restructuring of themselves or other health care providers.

Additional temporary rate adjustments have been reviewed and approved for the following hospitals:

- Saint Joseph’s Health

The aggregate payment amounts total up to \$2,897,078 for the period July 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024.

The aggregate payment amounts total up to \$2,843,460 for the period April 1, 2024, through March 31, 2025.

The aggregate payment amounts total up to \$2,162,669 for the period April 1, 2025, through March 31, 2026.

The public is invited to review and comment on this proposed State Plan Amendment. Copies of which will be available for public review on the Department of Health’s website at [http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state\\_plans/status](http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state_plans/status).

Copies of the proposed State Plan Amendments will be on file in each local (county) social services district and available for public review.

For the New York City district, copies will also be available at the following places:

New York County  
250 Church Street  
New York, New York 10018

Queens County, Queens Center  
3220 Northern Boulevard  
Long Island City, New York 11101

Kings County, Fulton Center  
114 Willoughby Street  
Brooklyn, New York 11201

Bronx County, Tremont Center  
1916 Monterey Avenue  
Bronx, New York 10457

Richmond County, Richmond Center  
95 Central Avenue, St. George  
Staten Island, New York 10301

*For further information and to review and comment, please contact:* Department of Health, Division of Finance and Rate Setting, 99 Washington Ave., One Commerce Plaza, Suite 1460, Albany, NY 12210, [spa\\_inquiries@health.ny.gov](mailto:spa_inquiries@health.ny.gov)

**PUBLIC NOTICE**  
Department of Health

Pursuant to 42 CFR Section 447.205, the Department of Health hereby gives public notice of the following:

The Department of Health proposes to amend the Title XIX (Medicaid) State Plan for non-institutional services in accordance with Section 2559 of the New York State Public Health Law. The following changes are proposed:

**Non-Institutional Services**

Effective on or after July 1, 2023, all claiming for transportation will be on a fee-for-service basis for each one-way trip. The EI Program transportation rates will be revised from the current Preschool Supportive Health Services Program (PSSHS) one-way trip rates from 2009 to the new rates developed pursuant to a 2021 Cost Study of Early Intervention (EI) Transportation services conducted by Public Consulting Group. Municipalities may continue to use existing transportation vendors paid at the contractual rate, however, the municipalities will receive state share reimbursement at the EIP established rates.

There is no additional estimated annual change to gross Medicaid expenditures as a result of the proposed amendments.

The public is invited to review and comment on this proposed State Plan Amendment, a copy of which will be available for public review on the Department’s website at [http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state\\_plans/status](http://www.health.ny.gov/regulations/state_plans/status). Individuals without Internet access may view the State Plan Amendments at any local (county) social services district.

For the New York City district, copies will be available at the following places:

New York County  
250 Church Street  
New York, New York 10018

Queens County, Queens Center  
3220 Northern Boulevard  
Long Island City, New York 11101



**Appendix V**  
**2023 Title XIX State Plan**  
**Second Quarter Amendment**  
**Responses to Standard Funding Questions**

**NON-INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES**  
**State Plan Amendment #23-0037**

**CMS Standard Funding Questions**

The following questions are being asked and should be answered in relation to all payments made to all providers reimbursed pursuant to a methodology described in Attachment 4.19-B of the state plan.

- 1. Section 1903(a)(1) provides that Federal matching funds are only available for expenditures made by States for services under the approved State plan. Do providers receive and retain the total Medicaid expenditures claimed by the State (includes normal per diem, supplemental, enhanced payments, other) or is any portion of the payments returned to the State, local governmental entity, or any other intermediary organization? If providers are required to return any portion of payments, please provide a full description of the repayment process. Include in your response a full description of the methodology for the return of any of the amount or percentage of payments that are returned and the disposition and use of the funds once they are returned to the State (i.e., general fund, medical services account, etc.)**

**Response:** Providers receive and retain 100 percent of total Medicaid expenditures claimed by the State and the State does not require any provider to return any portion of such payments to the State, local government entities, or any other intermediary organization.

- 2. Section 1902(a)(2) provides that the lack of adequate funds from local sources will not result in lowering the amount, duration, scope, or quality of care and services available under the plan. Please describe how the state share of each type of Medicaid payment (normal per diem, supplemental, enhanced, other) is funded. Please describe whether the state share is from appropriations from the legislature to the Medicaid agency, through intergovernmental transfer agreements (IGTs), certified public expenditures (CPEs), provider taxes, or any other mechanism used by the state to provide state share. Note that, if the appropriation is not to the Medicaid agency, the source of the state share would necessarily be derived through either an IGT or CPE. In this case, please identify the agency to which the funds are appropriated. Please provide an estimate of total expenditure and State share amounts for each type of Medicaid payment. If any of the non-federal share is being provided using IGTs or CPEs, please fully describe the matching arrangement including when the state agency receives the transferred amounts from the local government entity transferring the funds. If CPEs are used, please describe the methodology used by the state to verify that the total expenditures being certified are eligible for Federal matching funds in accordance with 42 CFR 433.51(b). For any payment funded by CPEs or IGTs, please provide the following:**
  - (i) a complete list of the names of entities transferring or certifying funds;**
  - (ii) the operational nature of the entity (state, county, city, other);**

- (iii) the total amounts transferred or certified by each entity;
- (iv) clarify whether the certifying or transferring entity has general taxing authority: and,
- (v) whether the certifying or transferring entity received appropriations (identify level of appropriations).

**Response:** The Non-Federal share Medicaid provider payment is funded by a combination of the following funds/funding sources through enacted appropriations authority to the Department of Health (DOH) for the New York State Medicaid program.

A. **General Fund:** Revenue resources for the State's General Fund includes taxes (e.g., income, sales, etc.), and miscellaneous fees (including audit recoveries). Medicaid expenditures from the State's General Fund are authorized from Department of Health Medicaid.

- 1) New York State Audit Recoveries: The Department of Health collaborates with the Office of the Medical Inspector General (OMIG) and the Office of the Attorney General (AG) in recovering improperly expended Medicaid funds. OMIG conducts and coordinates the investigation, detection, audit, and review of Medicaid providers and recipients to ensure they are complying with all applicable laws and regulation. OMIG recovers any improper payments through cash collections and voided claim recoveries. Cash collections are deposited into the State's General Fund to offset Medicaid costs.

In addition to cash collections, OMIG finds inappropriately billed claims within provider claims. To correct an error, OMIG and DOH process the current accurate claim, and reduce this claim by the inappropriate claim value to recoup the previous overclaim and decrease state spending.

3. **Section 1902(a)(30) requires that payments for services be consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care. Section 1903(a)(1) provides for Federal financial participation to States for expenditures for services under an approved State plan. If supplemental or enhanced payments are made, please provide the total amount for each type of supplemental or enhanced payment made to each provider type.**

**Response:** This is not a supplemental or enhanced payment.

4. **For clinic or outpatient hospital services please provide a detailed description of the methodology used by the state to estimate the upper payment limit (UPL) for each class of providers (state owned or operated, non-state government owned or operated, and privately owned or operated). Please provide a current (i.e., applicable to the current rate year) UPL demonstration. Under regulations at 42 CFR 447.272, States are prohibited from setting payment rates for Medicaid inpatient services that exceed a reasonable estimate of the amount that would be paid under Medicare payment principals.**

**Response:** The Medicaid payments authorized under this State Plan Amendment do not impact the UPL demonstrations.

5. **Does any governmental provider receive payments that in the aggregate (normal per diem, supplemental, enhanced, other) exceed their reasonable costs of providing services? If payments exceed the cost of services, do you recoup the excess and return the Federal share of the excess to CMS on the quarterly expenditure report?**

**Response:** Providers do not receive payments that in the aggregate exceed their reasonable costs of providing services. If any providers received payments that in the aggregate exceeded their reasonable costs of providing services, the State would recoup the excess and return the Federal share of the excess to CMS on the quarterly expenditure report.

#### **ACA Assurances:**

1. **Maintenance of Effort (MOE).** Under section 1902(gg) of the Social Security Act (the Act), as amended by the Affordable Care Act, as a condition of receiving any Federal payments under the Medicaid program during the MOE period indicated below, the State shall not have in effect any eligibility standards, methodologies, or procedures in its Medicaid program which are more restrictive than such eligibility provisions as in effect in its Medicaid program on March 10, 2010.

#### **MOE Period.**

- **Begins on:** March 10, 2010, and
- **Ends on:** The date the Secretary of the Federal Department of Health and Human Services determines an Exchange established by a State under the provisions of section 1311 of the Affordable Care Act is fully operational.

**Response:** This SPA complies with the conditions of the MOE provision of section 1902(gg) of the Act for continued funding under the Medicaid program.

2. **Section 1905(y) and (z) of the Act provides for increased FMAPs for expenditures made on or after January 1, 2014 for individuals determined eligible under section 1902(a)(10)(A)(i)(VIII) of the Act. Under section 1905(cc) of the Act, the increased FMAP under sections 1905(y) and (z) would not be available for States that require local political subdivisions to contribute amounts toward the non-Federal share of the State's expenditures at a greater percentage than would have been required on December 31, 2009.**

**Prior to January 1, 2014** States may potentially require contributions by local political subdivisions toward the non-Federal share of the States' expenditures at percentages greater than were required on December 31, 2009. **However,** because of the provisions of section 1905(cc) of the Act, it is important to determine and document/flag any SPAs/State plans which have such greater percentages prior to the January 1, 2014 date in order to anticipate potential

**violations and/or appropriate corrective actions by the States and the Federal government.**

**Response:** This SPA would [ ] / would not [✓] violate these provisions, if they remained in effect on or after January 1, 2014.

- 3. Please indicate whether the State is currently in conformance with the requirements of section 1902(a)(37) of the Act regarding prompt payment of claims.**

**Response:** The State complies with the requirements of section 1902(a)(37) of the Act regarding prompt payment of claims.

**Tribal Assurance:**

**Section 1902(a)(73) of the Social Security Act the Act requires a State in which one or more Indian Health Programs or Urban Indian Organizations furnish health care services to establish a process for the State Medicaid agency to seek advice on a regular ongoing basis from designees of Indian health programs whether operated by the Indian Health Service HIS Tribes or Tribal organizations under the Indian Self Determination and Education Assistance Act ISDEAA or Urban Indian Organizations under the Indian Health Care Improvement Act.**

**IHCIA Section 2107(e)(I) of the Act was also amended to apply these requirements to the Children's Health Insurance Program CHIP. Consultation is required concerning Medicaid and CHIP matters having a direct impact on Indian health programs and Urban Indian organizations.**

- a) Please describe the process the State uses to seek advice on a regular ongoing basis from federally recognized tribes Indian Health Programs and Urban Indian Organizations on matters related to Medicaid and CHIP programs and for consultation on State Plan Amendments waiver proposals waiver extensions waiver amendments waiver renewals and proposals for demonstration projects prior to submission to CMS.**
- b) Please include information about the frequency inclusiveness and process for seeking such advice.**
- c) Please describe the consultation process that occurred specifically for the development and submission of this State Plan Amendment when it occurred and who was involved.**

**Response:** Tribal consultation was performed in accordance with the State's tribal consultation policy as approved in SPA 17-0065, and documentation of such is included with this submission. To date, no feedback has been received from any tribal representative in response to the proposed change in this SPA.